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November 25, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health Services, to
retroactively exercise a renewal option and amend an existing agreement with HIV/HCV Resource
Center, Inc. (Vendor# 166709-B001), 2 Blacksmith Street, Lebanon, New Hampshire 03766, to provide
community-based harm reduction'services and supports to individuals related to their opioid use or post
opioid overdose and co-occurring medical diseases, by increasing the price limitation by $96,027 from
$50,109 to $146,136, and by extending the completion date from November 30, 2019 to November 30,
2020, effective retroactive to December 1, 2019, upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100%
Federal Funds.

This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 19, 2019
(Item #76).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, with authority
to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.,

05-95-090-902510-70390000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH
CRISIS RESPONSE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2019 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90703901 $26,144 $0 $26,144

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90703901 $23,965 $0 $23,965

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90703901 $0 $0 $0

Sub Total: $50.f09 $0 $50,109
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05-95-090-902010-50400000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH
AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, POPULATION HEALTH. OPIOID
SURVEILLANCE

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Modified

Budget

2020 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Sen/ices
90050406 $0 $80,022 $80,022

2021 102-500731
Contracts for

Program Services
90050406 $0 $16,005 $16,005

Sub Total: $0 $96,027 $96,027

Total $50,109 $96,027 $146,136

EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive because the Department did not have the fully executed contract
documents in time for Governor arid Executive Council approval to prevent the current contract from
expiring.

The purpose of this request is to have the Contractor provide community-based harm reduction
services and supports to individuals related to their opioid use or post opioid overdose and co-occurring
medical diseases in the areas of Claremont, neighboring towns in Sullivan County, including, but not
limited to Newport, Cornish, Croydon and Charlestown.

Approximately 150 individuals will be served from date of the Governor and Executive Council
approval through November 30, 2020.

The State of New Hampshire is in the midst of an opioid overdose epidemic. In 2018, New
Hampshire had 471 opioid-related deaths. 2,234 EMS naloxone (Narcan) administrations, and 5,539
emergency department opioid related visits. While NH has not experienced an overall increase in HIV
infections, the proportion of individuals newly diagnosed with HIV who report injection drug use as a risk
factor has increased. Additionally, most individuals with new Hepatitis C infection also report a history of
injection drug use. 80% of the 529 people diagnosed with new Hepatitis C infections in 2018 in NH
reported a history of injecting drugs. These infections can not only be deadly, but they are expensive to
treat. They are also preventable through effective harm reduction strategies.

The Contractor will utilize education to assist individuals in gaining knowledge and making
informed decisions about their own health. Services will include, but are not limited to, syringe exchange,
referrals to medical, mental health and substance misuse treatment social services, offering
transportation to follow-up appointments to ensure linkage to substance misuse care, assisting
individuals on applying for health insurance and getting into treatment, providing support during the
individual's transition to medical care and ensuring that expanded services are offered.

The Contractor will provide expanded services which include, but are not limited to, written and
verbal education about safe drug injection practices, reversing a drug overdose; HIV prevention, viral
hepatitis, and sexually transmitted diseases testing, treatment and care services; medical and mental
health treatment options, substance use disorder treatment including medical and assisted treatment and
proper use of male and female condoms.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

•  Ninety-five percent (95%) of individuals utilizing Harm Reduction Services shall utilize one
(1) or more Harm Reduction Services per visit.

•  A minimum offifty percent (50%) ofclients are offered referrals to social sen/ice, HIV, HCV
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and STD testing, medical/mental health and MAT.

Ninety percent (90%) of those referred are provided linkage to MAT or other SLID

treatment within 30 days of referral.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1 that allows the Department to renew
the contract for up to one (1) year, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory
performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive
Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for one (1) of the one(1) years at this
time.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, individuals at highest risk
for acquiring an infectious disease due to injection drug use, may not have the opportunity to access the
knowledge necessary to make informed decisions about their own health, including syringe exchange.
Individuals will not have the chance to be linked to the aforementioned essential services described

above.

Area served; Claremont, neighboring towns in Sullivan County, including, but not limited to
Newport, Cornish, Croydon and Charlestown.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,

Cooperative Agreement for New Hampshire Overdose Data to Action Program (NH OD2A) Funding
Opportunity Number CE9-1904.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

espectfully submitted.

iffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Community Based Harm Reduction Services

This 1" Amendment to the Community Based Harm Reduction contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and HiV-HOV Resource Center, Inc.,
(hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 2 Blacksmith Street,
Lebanon, NH, 03766.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 19, 2019 (Item #76), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1 Revisions to
Standard Contract Language, Paragraph 2, Renewal, the Contract may be extended and amended upon
written agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #1 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

November 30, 2020

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$146,136.

3. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A Amendment #1, Scope
of Services.

4. Add Exhibit B-4, Budget Form, Amendment #1.

HIV-HCV Resource Center, Inc., Amendment#! Contractor Initials

RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU Page 1 of 3 Date
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Community Based Harm Reduction Services

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hamp^lre

Da

Department of HeaftKl^nd Human Services

^e: Lisa Morris
Title: Director

Date

loh'lzoii

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc.

Name: ,
Title:

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State ■ County of on CxJtrc^ctpr- before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name, and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

HIV-HCV Resource Center, Inc.,

RFP.2019-DPHS-20-COMMU

Amendment #1
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date ' '

Title.

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

HIV-HCV Resource Center, Inc., Amendment #1

RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU Page 3 of 3



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

ExhibitA Aryyjf^mpfH- L{^

Scope of Services

1. Limitation on Use of Funds

1.1. This section identifies all items that cannot be funded through this contracL
1.1.1. The Contractor shall not use the federal funding provided by this program

for the research or purchase of items that include, but are not limited to:

1.1.1.1. Naloxone/Narcan. syringes, fentanyl lest strips, harm reduction
kits, furniture or equipment

1.1.1.2. HIV/HCV/olher STD/STI testing.

1.1.1.3. Drug disposal including but not limited to:

1.1.1.3.1. Implementing or expanding drug disposal programs
or drug take back programs;

1.1.1.3.2. Drug drop box; or

1.1.1.3.3. Drug disposal bags.

1.1.1.4. The provision of medical/clinical care.

1.1.1.5. Wastewater analysis, including but not limited to:

1.1.1.5.1. Testing vendors;

1.1.1.5.2. Sewage testing; and

1.1.1.5.3. Wastewater testing.

1.1.1.6. Research.

1.1.1.7. Direct funding or expanding the provision of substance at)use
treatment

1.1.1.8. Development of educational materials on safe injection.
1.1.1.9. The prevention of Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) as a

stand-along activity. However, activities related to ACEs are
allowable if they pertain to establishing linkage to care, or to
providing training to public safety and firel responders on
trauma-informed care.

1.1.1.10. Public safety activities that do not include clear

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. ExhibitA^ Contractor Initob

RFP.20ld-DPHS-20.COMMU-01 Date
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Exhitrft A Arytpn\rvinfv» -p I

overlap/collaboration with pubftc health partner and objectives.
2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

2.1.The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the langu^e assistance
services they wiD provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the
contract effective date.

2.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or f^ral or state court orders may have an Impact on
the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service
prioiifies and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith.

2.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no services
shall continue after November 30. 2020. and the Department shall not be fiable
for any payments for services provided after November 30.2020. unless and until
an appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature
and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 blennia.

2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the Contractor
as a Sub-recipient in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2.5. The Contractor shall post its address, phone numbers, program contact
InfomiaUon and, if appropriate, hours of operation and services offered on its
Internet website.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to individuals in their service
areas of Claremonl. New Hampshire and neighboring New Hampshire Sullivan
County towns, including but not limited to Newport Cornish. Croydon and
Chariestown.

3. Scope of Services

3.1.^ Conlraclor shall both implement and provide for the ongoing management of
harm reduction services in their identified service areas listed In sub-section 2 6
including the foDovying:

3.1.1. Promote sterile drug injection; excluding items listed under 1.1
3.1.2. Promote the reduction of infectious disease transmission through injection

drug use; excluding items listed under 1.1.

3.1.3. Provide syringe disposal services.

3.1.4. Provide male and female condoms to reduce the risk of sexual transmission
of viral hepatitis. HIV and other STDs (based on availability, condoms may
be supplied to any SSP, at no cost, through IDPICSS condom distribution

HIV/HCV Resource Centor. Inc. Contfactor mtteb ^
RFP.2019.DPHS-2(M:OMMIM)1 Date
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Exhibit A Ainr\nrt^rY\^r>f-4f I ^

program).

3.1.5. Post their addresses, phone numbers, progranri contact information and, if
appropriate, hours of operation and services offered on its Internet website.

3.2.The Contractor shall collaborate with community partners to navigate resources
that address social determinants of health with indlviduals with various needs.

3.3.The Contractor shall utilize a harm reduction approach, to assist individuals In
gaining knovirtedge and making informed decisions about their own health. This
shall include written and verbal education about the foilowing topics:
3.3.1. Safier drug injection practices (excluding the development of educational

materials on safe Injection practices);

3.3.2. Reversing a drug overdose;

3.3.3. HIV prevention, testing, treatment and care services;

3.3.4. Viral Hepatitis prevention, testing, treatment and care services;
3.3.5. Medical and mental health treatment options;

3.3.6. Substance use disorder treatment (including niedlcation assisted
treatment); and

3.3.7. Proper use of male and female condoms.

3.4. The Contractor shall provide referral and navigation services for Individuals
including:

3.4.1. Testing for HIV. viral hepatitis and STDs.

3.4.2. Medical care and/or treatment for hepatitis C virus (HCV), STDs and HIV,
P^^osure Prophylaxis (PrEP) and Post-Exposure Prophylaxis (PEP)

3.4.4. Prevention of mother to child HIV transmission.

3.4.5. Partner services for STDs and HIV.

3.4.6. Medical and mental health care.

3.4.7. Referral to HepatiUs A Virus (HAV) and Hepatitis B Virus (HBV) vacdnatfon
services.

3.5. The Contractor must provide referral, navigation and linkage within thirty (30) days
of referral services, as appropriate, including:

3.5.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Treatment, including Medication Assisted

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Ine ExhWIA^ Conlraclor Inlliels

RFP-2019.DPHS-2tM:OMMU^1 Date /"/jl /1 7
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—  Exhibit A
Treatment (MAT).

3.6.

The Contractor shall educate people living with HIV on HIV Paitner Services that ate
free and ixnfidential and can assist them with navigating the process of infomiina
current and past partners alxjut their HIV status. The Contractor shaO ensure:

3.6.1. Iitdividuals have the option to choose to ask a specialist to speak directlv
with therr partners; '

3.6.2. ̂ nfidentiality of individuals' identifying information and ensuring
Identifying information is not shared virtth individuals' identified partners.

3.6.3. Information at>out services, including:

3.6.3.1. Working with individuals, especially those who are newly
diagnosed, encouraging them to utilize Partner Services;

3.6.3.2. Encouraging individuals to persuade their peers to visH the
program in person; and

3.6.3.3. Encouraging individuals to utilize other relevant communitv
resources.

3.7. The Contractor shall conduct outreach services, including through social media
wtuch snail include:

3.7.1. Providing <»mmunication services, including but not limited to the use of
social media technologies, as well as outreach activities designed to raise
awareness about and increase the utiiization of SSPs.

3.7.2. Transiting Information through social networks targeting individuals who
may be in need of services;

3.7.3. Creating informahon cards for individuals to use as a method of providing
discreel messaging with people they can trust. The Contractor shall
ensure the information card includes, but is not limited to;

3.7.3.1. Program description;

3.7.3.2. Hours of operation;

3.7.3.3. Location of services; and

3.7.3.4. Program contact information.

3.7.3.6. AdverUsing program services on bulletin boards located
throughout the town;

3.7.3.6. Providing content regarding program services the
Contractor's Facebook page and its website that includes

HIV/HCVRowK-rco Center. Inc. \ h Contrectof Initieb ^

RFP.2010^PHS-2(M:oMMU^1 Date foA,/f ̂
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locattons of services artd hours of operation;

3.7.3.7. Utiiizing paki targeted advertisements on social media
platforms that include but are not limited to Facebook to
educate community partners program services:

3.8. The Contractor shall coordinate with community-based services in cider to
reduce infectious disease transmission and addiction to injected drugs.

3.9. The Contractor shall work with harm reduction clients directly to Identify their
needs and assist them with accessing medical and social services which shall
include, but not be limited to:

3.9.1. Sut>stance misuse treatment;

3.9.2. STD (sexually transmitted disease) testing;
3.9.3. Hepatitis C follow up;

3.9.4. Mental health counseling; and

3.9.5. Housing.

3.10. The Conlractor shall ensure program services include a Harm Reduction
Coordinator who:

3.10.1. Accompanies Individuals to follow up appointments, if desired, in order to
ensure linkage to Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Treatment, including Medication
Assisted Treatment (MAT).

3.10.2. Works closely with individuals to assist them with applying for health
insurance and getting into treatment;

3.10.3. Maintains current records of aU trainings for staff regardinq prooram
services; » ̂  ̂

3.10.4. Wofks with communities within the Contractor's service areas to
promote harm reduction strategies, and overdose prevention and to help
ensure successful referrals to linkage to substance misuse, mental health
and ntedical care; and

3.10.5. Trains and supervises volunteer staff In areas that include:
3.10.5.1. Overdose prevention:

3.10.5.2. Infection control procedures;

3.10.5.3. Standard universal precautions;

3.10.5.4. TB screening;

3.10.5.5. Sexual health; and

3.10.5.6. Opiate addiction overview, including relapse and
HIVWCVResourcocenter. Inc. ContrectorInitiate ^

RFP.201W)PHS-2OCOM««Ml ^ Date
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relapse prevention.

3.11. The Contractor shall ensure policies and procedures are implemented and
101^^ on a day-to-day basis for individual follow-up for HIV/HCV Teslino
including:

3.11.1. CollaboraUngwtth Partner Services when results ofa test are positive;
3.11.2. EnMutaging individuals who test positive for HIV to make use of

confidential Partner Services; and

3.11.3. Connecfing mdiyiduals directly with a specialist from the Division of
Rubric Health Services in order to help locate their sex and druo-
sharing partners for follow up.

3.12.1^ Contrartor shall ensure the Program Coordinator reviews results of HIV and
HGV screening tests to ensure linkage to follow up testing and care.

<«agnosed individual with HIV, who areeligible, for HIV case management services and provide the following:
3.13.1. Provide support during the individual's transition to medical care;
3.13.2. AssisUndM^^^^^^ problems that may arise, which may inctode,

3.13.2.1. Maintaining communication with the individual;
3.13.2.2. Offering transportation to medical appointments; and

nrtlimSa'"^ ^ in-house services which include, but are
3.14.1. UUImng a case manager, who is a Certified Application Counselor to

assist individuals with applying for health Insurance; and
3.14.2. UtilWng a case manager, who is a Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

to offer counseling to selected individuals.

4. Reporting

New Hampshire infectious diseasereporting in accordance with Administrative Rules He-P 301.

sports, in a format provided by the
Department, that include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. A brief summary of activities to date;
4.2.2. Number of participants in the program, which shall include, but not be

HIV/HCV Resourca cantor, inc. Contractor Iritlals LA

RFP-2019-OPH^20-COMMU-01
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timited to:

4.2.2.1.Number of unduplicated participants in ttie pragram,;
4.2.2.2.Number of repeat users of the program, when possible,;
4.2J.3.Number of syringes dispensed and disposed of;
4.2.2.4. Number of individuals to whom referral and navigation

provided, itemized by service type; for services
identified in Section # 3.4

4.2.2.5.Number of individuals to whom education has been provided
Itemized by topic; for services identified in Section # 3.3

4.2.2.6. Number of condoms dispensed;

4.2.Z7.Number of referrals to MAT or other substance misuse
treatment;

4.2.2.8.Number of indhriduais referred to MAT or other substance

S ref^rt^*^"' "'ho were successfully linked within thirty (30) days
''"artetfy Registered NH Syringe Service Programr^^ to the D^rti^nt on^ril 30th, July 31st October 31st and January 31sT

iubmlft^^nrh H ® day, quarterly reports will besubmitted on the working day preceding the due date.

completeness and adherence to
reporting protocols to ensure quality of data.

adequate maintenance of records, andpr^ to the Depai^nt on request, a report detailing that the Items identified
in Section 1 have not been purchased with these federal funds.

5. Performance Measures

S.l.Ttie Contractorfe successful performance shall be measured using SMART
milestones, which include: ^ "'

5.1.1. Ninety-five percent (95%) of individuals utilizing Harm Reduction
^tvices shall utilize one (1) or more Harm Reduction Services oer
Visit

5.1.1.1. Numerator. Total number of unduplicated clients who utilize a
single Harm Reduction Service per visit.

5.1.1.2. Denominator Total number of unduplicated clients who utilize
one of more Harm Reduction Services per visit

5.1.2. A minimum of fifty percent (50%) of clients are offered referrals to social service
HIV/HCV R«««. C-ntec. Uic. 1 I
RFP-zoiswrs-zocoMMuor ^7^ " dob
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HIV, HCV and STD testing, medical/mental tiealth and ll/IAT.

of undupllcated clients who receive^efeirai to social service, HIV, HCV and STD testina
medical/mental healtti and MAT.

me """otal numljer of undupllcated cRents utilizing

5.1.3.2, Denominator Total number of undupRcated clients who am
Raiment within 30 days

6. Deliverables

6.1. The^trartor shall create an evaluation plan that consists of alt measures to be
U^and revisit ttris plan on a quarterly basis rnaWng hrr^veS^
necessary and staying regularly engaged with evaluation.

6.2. The ̂ntractor ̂ all provide a work plan to the Department with timeKne fnr tho
project, within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date. '

HlV/HCVRescuio,center.UK. ConUacta
RFP-201 W>PHS.20.COMMIW>1
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ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

GORDON J. MACDONALD JANE E. YOUNG
ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

May 6, 2019

Via email Laura Byrne <laura@h2rc.org>

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc.

2 Blacksmith Street

Lebanon, NH 03766

Re: HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc.

Registration #3696

Dear Sir/Madam:

This will confirm that the above-referenced organization is registered with the New
Hampshire Attorney General and is currently up-tOrdate in all its filing requirements. The next
annual report is due to be filed on or before May 15, 2019.

Very truly yours,

ev

Thomas J. Donovan

Director of Charitable Trusts

(603) 271-3591
tom.donovan@doj.nh.gov

TJD;ab

hUpJ/doj.nh.gov/charitable-lrusts/

Telephone 608-371-3858 • FAX 608-271-2110 • TDD Aooeee: Relay NB 1-800-785-2964



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that HIV/HCV RESOURCE

CENTER, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on March 06, 1990.

I ftjither certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's olTice have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 149500

Certificate Number: 0004523245

SI
%

<5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 3rd day of June A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
(Corporation without Seal)

I, Sarah Lord, do hereby certify that:

I am the duly elected Chairperson of the Board of Directors of the HIV/HCV Resource Center.

Laura Byrne was elected Executive Director on October 12, 2013, with the authority to sign,
negotiate and enter into contracts on behalf of the Agency. She has been authorized to enter Into all
contracts, including contracts with the State of New Hampshire, and to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,'as she may
deem necessary, desirable or appropriate during the time the she serves as Executive Director.

Sarah Lord

Board Chair of the HIV/HCV Resource Center

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day ofts^c?LJoi^^r20 \ ̂  .

By X-CTT-Jl
(Name of Clerk of the Corporation)

(Notary PubltCTJustice of the Peace)
(NOTARY SEAL) t i

Commission Expires: >5(^ 3^



ACC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DCWYYYY)

10/31/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsen>ent A statentent on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementjs).

PRODUCER

HPM Insurance pka The Holt Agency

101 Ponemah Road. Suite 1

Amherst NH 03031

Kim Dowse

(603)673-1201 (603)673^825

AiSwESS- I^OowseighpfTiinsurance.com
INSURER(S) Af FORDINO COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A
Technology Ins Co 42376

INSURED

HIv/Hcv Resource Center Inc.

2 Blacksmith Street

Lettanon NH 03766

INSURERB

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL19103128130 REVISION NUMBER;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

tNSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER

POUCY EFF
(MMflXVYYYYI

POLICY EXP
(MMrtXVYYYY) UMITS 1

COMMERCIAL celERAL UABtLlTY

E  1 1 OCCUR
EACH OCCURRENCE s

CLAIMS-MAD

DAMAGE TO REi/TED
s

MED EXP (Any on* parson) s

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY s

GENl AGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s

POUCY 1 1 Sect I 1 LOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS • COMP/OPAGG s

-

s

AUTOMOBILE LiABIUTY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Fa aedrtantl

s

ANY AUTO

HEOULED

TOS
)N-OWNEO
rroSONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par parson) s

0V1NED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SC BOOfLY INJURY (Par aeddant) s

NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per aedrtantl

s

s

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE s

AGGREGATE s

DED 1 1 RETENTION $ %

A

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABtUTV y/N
ANY PROPRrETOR/PARTNER«X£CUTIVE [~^
0FFICERAIEM8ER EXCLUDED?
(M«rtd«ofy In NH)
II yM. OMOrtb* (Aidar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bakw

NiA TWC3821124 10/01/2019 10/01/2020

PER OTH.
.<rrATUTG ER

E L EACH ACCIDENT
, 100.000

E.L. DISEASE - £A EMPLOYEE
, 100.000

E.L DISEASE • PIXICY UMIT
, 500.000

DES(

Wor

:ript10N OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS' VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Romartu SctwduM. may bo atUchod if men ipaco U roqulrod)

keFs Compensation Insurance applies in these states: NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS

129 Pleasant St

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All lights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

11/25/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ie8) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Clark • Mortenson Insurance
P.O. Box 606
Keene NH 03431

CONTACT
NAMF-

603-352-2121 iwc nol 603-357-8491

A(^Fs:^- csr24admin(Siclark-monenson.com

INSURE R(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICa

INSURER A Philadelphia Insurance Company

INSURED ^
HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc.
2 Blacksmith St
Lebanon NH 03766

INSURER e

INSURER C

INSURER D

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1695583031 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

wvnTYPE OF INSURANCE
AOOL

iUSD POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF
IMMrtXVYYYYl

POLICY EXP
(MMrtlOfYYYYI LIMITS

WSR

ilB. .

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABILITY

CLAIMS^AOE OCCUR

i2ge99ss 12/0/2019 12/6/2020 EACH OCCURRENCE

OAltiAfie ro RENTE6
PREMISES (Ea occurfww)

MED EXP (Any one pf»on)

PERSONAL & /LOV injury

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER;

□POLICY
□ PRO

JECT LOC

GENERAL AGGREGATE

OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$1,000,000

$100.000

$5,000

$1,000,000

$ 3.000.000

$ 3,000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABtUTY 12989935 12«/2020 COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
tEaecoOenil '1.000.000

ANY AUTO
ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY {Par perton)
SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NGN-OWNED
AUTOS

BODILY INJURY (Par accident)
PROPERTY DAMAGE
/Par acQdentl

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

OCCUR

CLAIMSAAADE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTIONS
oth
er

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY
ANY PROPRIETORff'ARTNER/EXECUTtVE
OFPICERAtEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
If yas. daacriba under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS Palo*

PER
STATUTE

• t n

□
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L aSEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

Profataiortal Liability 12989935 12/6/2020 1.000,000
3.000,000

Each Incidani
Apgragaia

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlbonal Ramarlca Schadula, may be attached H more apace la required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

'

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE VIRLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2014/01)

(S> 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



HIV/HCV Resource Center Mission Statement

Our mission is to support and empower those whose lives are affected by Hepatitis C and
HIV/AJDS to live fully and with dignity through education, information and
understanding. We work to change attitudes, actions and institutions that sustain the
diseases. We strive to create a community capable of choosing love, compassion and
support over fear, ignorance and prejudice.
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LEE A. WHITE & ASSOCIATES
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

86 Summer Street, Sle. 1

LeeA.Whitc,CPA.CFP^".PFS /I fiftf \ ^ Barn. Vermont 05641

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc.

We have auditivt the accompanying financial statements of HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. (a
non-profit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,2018,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the fmanciai statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stat^ents
in accordance with accounting principles generally accq)ted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal conUol relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are fiee fiom matenal misstatcment,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our a^t. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards required that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free finm material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fmanciai
statements, Nvhether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, tlw auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

<

Member of The Americart histllute and Vermont Society ofCertified Public Accountants
Phone (802) 476-6191 Fax (802) 476-0642

(1)



Opinion

In our opimon, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc. as of June 30,201S, and the chmges in
its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Barre, Vermont

VT Registration No.: 92-0000340
August 13,2019

(2)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.
/

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30,2018

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Security deposit
Grants receivable (Note 4)
Prepaid expenses

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 1 & 3)
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Property and Equipment

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued wages
Payroll taxes and other withholdings
Deferred revenue (Note 5)

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted

Undesignated
Total Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  167,915
1,400

36,379,
3.039

208.733

10,948
(10.948)

208,733

9,997
2,987

229

13,213

195.520

195,520

195,520

$  208,733

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(3)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER. INC.

STATEMENT OF ACnVITIES

Year ended June 30,2018

Change in Unrestricted Assets

Support and Revenue:
Grant income
Granite United Way
Contributions
Interest income
In kind revenue
Total Support and Revenue

Program Services;
Client Services
Education
Total Program Services

Support Services^
Management and general
Fundraising
Total Support Services

Total expenses

Change in unrestricted net assets

Unrestricted net assets, beginning of year

Unrestricted net assets, end of year

Temporarily restricted net assets, beginning of year

Temporarily restricted nets assets, end of year

Pennanently restricted net assets, beginning of year

Permanently restriaed net assets, end of year

S  241,204
4,667

59,324
13

9.731

314.939

209,874
75.472

285346

(98)
13.629

13.531

298.877

16,062

179.458

$  195.520

The accompanying notes aie an integral part of these financial statements
(4)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year eaded June 30,20)S

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Rent

Utilities

Phone and Internet

Insurance - directors and officers
Insurance - office and general liability
Training and staff development
Office suf^lies
Postage and shilling
Computer expense
Oues and subscriptions
Payroll processing fees
Bank charges
Professional fees and consultants
Advertising and promotion
Travel/Client transport
CM emerge^ assistance
HOPWA emergency assistance
HOPWA PHP assistance
Program materials and supplies
Substance misuse treatments
Client incentives

Program camps and conferences
In kind expense
Allocated expeases

Total expenses

Program Services

Client Services Education

S  82,314 $  26,278
7,369 2,046
6,318 1,997
9,384 2,516
2.816 618

2,048 619

853 274

1,153 370

100 326
492 168

89 21

1,698 471
85 194

1,393 431
24 10

6,500
-

5,280 6,222
9,843
13,512 .

550 .

858 18,719
9.799 .

• 3,650
- 325

9,731 .

37.665 10JI7

Total Pio^am
Services

t  m^92

9,415
S,3IS
11,900
3,434
2.667
1,127
1,523
426

660

110

2,169
279

1,824
34

6,500

11,502
9.843
13,512
550

19,577
9,799
3,650

325

9,731
47.882

285.346

Management
and General

39,915
3,792
3,027

I

422

568

328

45

273

115

679

12

31

347

141

Support Services

Fundraising

S  6.834
558

584

673

78

192

67

93

106

5

51

1,102

120

4

720

450

7

73

■Total

(49.7941

JSSL

1.912

13.629

155,341
13,765
11.926
12,573
3,513
2,859
1,616
2,184

426
1,094

160
2,493
1,496
2,623

50
7,220

481
11.856
9,843

13,512
550

19,791
9,799
3,650

325
9,731

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financial statements.
(5)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended June 30, 201S

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in nets assets to net
cash provided or (used) by operating activities:
Accounts receivable and grants receivable
Prepaid and deposits
Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

PayroU taxes and withholdings
Net cash provided or (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTTNG ACTIVmES
Net cash provided or (used) by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net cash provided or (used) by financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALNETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING

CASH A>rc) CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest

Cash paid during the year for income taxes

Non-cash transactions; In-Kind income and expense (Note 1)

16,062

7,577

(6)
3,357

(20,000)

6,991

6,991

160,924

$  167.915

9,731

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

(6)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2018

Notel. SUMMARY OF SIGNinCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature ofOnmnizfliion:

The HIV / HCV Resource Center works to support people whose lives are affected by
HIV/AIDS and Hepatitis C to live fully and with dignity, while halting the spread of these
dise^ through education. Information and understanding. The agency's three major
service areas include: HIV medical case management. HIV and Hepatitis C prevention
education, and HIV and Hepatitis C testing. All services are free of charge and available to
residents of Grafton, Sullivan, Coos counties in New Hampshire and Windsor and Oranee
counties in VermonL

The agency offers their case management clients transportation to medical and counseling
appointments, nutritious food fiom their food bank, and financial assistance for housing,
heat, utilities, food, clothing and medical needs. Educators offer risk reduction education
throu^ talks at community centers, schoob and drug treatment programs. The
organi2ation's targeted testing and syringe exchange programs reach individuals at the
greatest risk of acquiring HIV and Hepatitis C, and link those who have tested positive to
medical care providers.

The summary of significant accounting policies of HIV / HCV Resource Center. Inc. is
presented to assist in understanding the Organization's financial statentents. The financial
statements and notes are representations of HIV / HCV Resource Center, Inc.'s
management who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting
policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles and have been cimsistently
applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Basis of Accounting-

The financial records for HIV / HCV Resource Center, Inc. are maintained on the
accrual basb of accounting. Consequently, revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when incurred.

Functional Allocation of Expenses:

HIV / HCV Resource Center, Inc. reports its expenses on a functional basis, showing
basic program activities and support services. Expenses that can be identified whh a
specific program and support service are allocated directly according to their natural
expenditure classification. Other expenses that are common to multiple functions are
allocated by various bases.

(7)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER. INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30.2018

Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continotel)

Cash Eouivalentg-

E<mipment and DeoreciftH^p;

^uipmMt is recoj^ « cost of piirehasc or. if contributed, at fair market value at the
M  ''0^ 'o"8 the assets must be used, the contributionsarc ̂ rded as resinctcd support. In the absence of such stipulation, contributions of

.he rz ™ « f-
Support andR^fn^i^-

^^HCV Resource Center, Inc. receives support primarily through grants from the
Federal Government, the State of Vermont, and the State ofNew Hampshire.

Use ofEstiman^ff;

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assimptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of

rouS'^'' -d tS ̂ eS

Dcwiated Matipfjals and Servicen

Itis the intent^HW / HCV Resource Center. Inc. to record the value of donated goods
objective basis available to measure their value. For the

year cncW June 30,2018 the NH Food Bank and Willing Hands donated food in the

S150 for a total of J9,731 in donated items and services.

and office services, ntese hours arenot on the books because there is no set guidelines for valuing these services.

(8)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2018

Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {contioued)

Contribudoos and Net

HIV / HCV Resource Center. Inc. has adopted ASC 958-605. Under these provisions
contributions received arc recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently
restricted support depending upon the existence or nature of donor restrictions.

^^butions are recognized when the donor makes a fneroise to give to the Organization
that IS, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are
reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires In the fiscal year in
which the contributions are recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as increa^ in lempofarily or permanently restricted net assets depending upon the
nature of the restrictions. When the restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
reclassified to unrestricted net assets.

HIV / HCV Resource Center. Inc. has also adopted ASC 958-225-45-16. Under these
provisions, net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified based on the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets ofthe
Organization and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-fmposed stipulations that
may or will be met either by actions ofthe Organization and/or the passage of time.

P^anently restricted net assets - Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed
^pulations that they be maintained pexmanenUy by the Organization. Generally, the
^nors of these assets may or may not permit the Organization to use all or part of the
income earned on related investments for general or specific purposes.

The Organization docs not have any permanently or temporarily restricted net assets at
June 30,2018.

(9)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30,2018

Note 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cootlnoed)

Advertisiny:

The Organization expenses the costs of advertising as incurred. Advertising expense was
S48I for the year ended June 30,2018.

Income Tax Status:

The Organization is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c) (3) of the
Internal Revenue Code. However, any income from activities not directly related to the
Organization's tax exempt purpose ts subject to taxi^on as unrelated business taxable
income. In addition, the Organization qualifies for the charitable contribution deduction
under Section 170(b)(1)(A) of the Code.

Note 2. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization receives a substantial amount of its support from government agencies.
A significant reduction in level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect
on the Organization's programs and activities. Grants often require the fulfillment of
certain conditions as set forth In the instrument of the grant Failure to frilfill the
conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors. Althou^ the return of funds is a
possibility, the board of directors deems the contingency unlikely, since by accepting the
grants and their terms, it has made a cwnmitment to fulfill the provisions of the grant

Note 3. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At June 30,2018, the costs and related accumulated dcjweciation of property and
equipment consisted of the following:

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation Net

Equipment

Total 6/30/18

s 10,948 S  10,948 S

s 10,948 S  10,948 $

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30,2018 was SO.

(10)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2018

Note 4. GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Grants receivable represrat grants which the Organization will receive within one year. Due to their
cunent nature, no allowaace is deemed necessary. At year end grants receivable were the following:

NH HOPWA 5 5,250
NH Case Management 16,927
VT HOPWA 8,213
VT Case Management (4,363)

1Drug Treatment ,167

VTSSP (8^5)
Fundraising
Total Grants Receivable S 36,379

Notes. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue is the result of cash receipts from grants, contributioos and other income which
has been received but not spent by year end. Revenue is recognized only to the extent that related
expenses have been incurred. At year end the balance in deferred revenue was as follows:

Led yard National Bank
Jack &. Dorothy Byrne Foundation
Total Deferred Revenue

Note 6, LEASES

HIV / HCV Resource Center, Inc. leases its ofTice space in Lebanon, New Hampshire. The 5 year
lease was signed March 23,2016 and the lease payment was $ 1,114.46 per month for the first year
with a 2% yeariy increase for yean 2 through 5. The current lease payment is $1,159.49 per month.

Note?. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subseqtjcnt events through Aug^ 13,2019, the date which the
financial statements were available for issue. Management b not aware of any subsequent
events which require disclosure.

(H)



HIV / HCV RESOURCE CENTER, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30.201 g

Notes. ACCOUNTING STANDARD FOR TAX BENEFITS

In accordance with ASC 740, Income taxes, the Organization must record the tax benefit
associated with tax deductions taken for tax return purposes when it is more likely than not
the position will not be sustained. This standard had no impact on the Organization's
finaiKial statements for the year ending June 30,2018. The Organization does not believe
there are any material uncertain tax positions and, accordingly, it has not recognized any
liability for unrecognized tax beneflts. For the year ended June 30,2018, there were no
interest or penalties recorded or included in the financial statement

(12)



HIV/HCV Resource Center 2019 Board of Directors

Sarah E. Lord, Ph.D., President

sarah.e.lord@dartmouth.edu
As an

Assistant Professor of Psychiatry and Director of Dissemination & Implementation Core in The Center
for Technology & Behavioral Health at Dartmouth Psychiatric Research Center, Sarah's research
focuses on the development, evaluation, and sustainable dissemination of technology-delivered
assessment, prevention, and behavioral intervention tools for adolescent, young adult, and parent
populations, primarily in the areas of substance abuse, HIV, and sexual health.

John Morris, Secretary

morrisvt@tops-teIe.com

Recently retired as the pastor at St. Martin's Episcopal Church in Fairlee VT, John has served four
Episcopal Churches on a part-time basis since 1968, one of which was in East Harlem, NY. He taught
the primary grades of elementary school for 30 years before retiring 1999. He has supported programs
that work with people living with HIV-AIDS for many years.

Andres Aguilera
andres.aguilera.med@dartmouth.edu

A medical resident at Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth, Andres is interested in preventing the
transmission of infectious disease and has worked with people living with HIV in multiple capacities.

John Sanders, M.D.

john.h.sanders.jr@dartmouth.edu

A retired physician, John volunteers at the Good Neighbor Health Clinic in White River Junction VT,
working with uninsured and low- income individuals. He often provides medical care for clients of our
syringe service program.

Richard Waddell, D.Sc., M.Sc.

richard.d.waddell@dartmouth.edu

Recently retired as an Associate Professor of Medicine and Associate Director of DarDar International
Programs at Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth, Richard maintains a keen interest in global
health, research bioethics, HIV/AIDS and social justice.

David de Gijsel

Instructor in Medicine

Fellow in Infectious Disease

Resident in Leadership and Preventative Medicine
Geisel School of Medicine at Dartmouth

david.degijsel@dartmouth.edu

David is a practicing physician. His primary areas of interest are Infectious complications of substance
use, Hepatitis C in people who inject drugs, Tuberculosis and Global Health.



LAURA BYRNE

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Executive Director: HIV/HCV Resource Center (2013- present)
Responsible for program management, fundraising/development, financial management,
agency administration and personnel management as well as education, networking and
advocacy for this non-profit AIDS Service Organization in Lebanon, N.H.

\

Prevention and Education Director: HIV/HCV Resource Center (2010-present)
Responsible for implementing HIV prevention education programs and managing the agency's syringe
exchange programs. Programs include CDC-approved "Social Networks Testing" (incentive-based
networking technique to encourage high-risk individuals to get tested for HIV), and "Healthy Relationships"
(five-session workshop to help people living with HIV make decisions on issues of HIV status disclosure and
safer sex practices). I also give HIV and Hepatitis C prevention talks at'drug treatment facilities, write grant
proposals and am a member of the VT HIV Community Advisory Group and NH HIV Community Planning
Group.

Deputy Director: Village Health Works (2006-2009)
Maintained relationships with donors, coordinated the efforts of volunteers in several countries, and wrote
grant proposals for a non-profit organization that built and operates a health clinic in Burundi, Africa.

Business Manager: Harp and Co. Graphic Design
Managed a small graphic design firm (2005-2009) and a commercial photography studio (2005-2007).
Responsibilities included Photo Shop design, printing press production oversight, color matching, client
communication and bookkeeping.

Artist

Decorative painter, bookbinder (1993-2005)
Coordinated and conducted decorative painting projects for clients in New England.
Designed and marketed artist books.

Textile artist (1987-1989), New York City
Designed and re-colored prints to be made into fabrics.

Language Teacher (1990-92)
Taught English conversation skills to French executives, university and lycee students and medical English
to French doctors in Strasbourg (1990-1992) and Annecy (2001), France.

EDUCATION:

1991 Diplome d'Etudes Fran^aises, University des Sciences
Humaines de Strasbourg, France

1988 M.A. Boston University, Department of Anthropology
1981 B.A. Colby College, English major and Biology minor

LANGUAGES:

French: advanced reading, writing, speaking;
Indonesian (Bahasa Indonesia): working capability



Ryan Tristam Richards

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

July 2010- Present HIV/HCV Resource Center Lebanon, NH
Medical Case Manager
Provided comprehensive case management services for people living with HIV/AIDS. Collaborated with
medical providers and service providers from other non-profits to create, implement, monitor and evaluate
treatment plans designed to enhance treatment adherence and quality of life. Assisted individuals in
gaining access to medical services, insurance, food assistance, financial assistance, transportation services,
mental health services and other support systems. Worked with clients of varying ability, tailoring
management style to particular needs of each client. Prepared annual, biannual and quarterly reports for
state and federal agencies and maintained financial records. Maintained extensive client files including
demographic socioeconomic and financial information. Managed confidential information adhering to
HIPAA regulations. Utilized computer software specific to Medical Case Management to create reports
and track and interpret data. Became knowledgeable of pertinent state and federal guidelines and laws in
order to implement and deliver programs efficiently and legally. Provided HIV testing and counseling to
individuals at an increased risk of acquiring or transmitting HIV. Researched and applied for state, federal
and private grants. Operated syringe support programs (SSP), and participated in the development of SSP.

July 2009- June 2010 Brookhaven Treatment and Learning Center for Boys Chelsea, VT
Residential Counselor

Collaborated with clinical and academic staff to create and implement individual treatment plans for
young boys with behavioral and cognitive limitations in both an academic and residential setting.
Provided a safe and nurturing environment that fostered academic and social emotional learning.
Provided constant supervision and behavioral management. Facilitated group therapy sessions. Managed
and administered resident medication and maintained medical logs. Provided guidance and support to co-
workers.

June 2006- June 2009 Becket Family of Services: Mount Prospect Academy Plymouth, NH
Teacher, Paraprofessional ^
Modeled and taught adult living skills to youth with emotional and behavioral disabilities in a residential
setting. Supervised and led on/off campus activities and transitions throughout the day. Provided
emotional support for students in crisis. Collaborated with classroom teachers on the implementation of
daily lesson plans. Developed and designed lessons on leadership, history, philosophy, psychology and

. art for students with emotional and behavioral disabilities. Implemented and revised behavioral
modification systems within the classroom setting. Collaborated with counselors, residential directors and
other teachers regarding students' progress within the program. Problem solved with academic team on
student issues and needs. Advocated and initiated the use of the School Wide Information System (a
behavioral data collection system) for the entire school. Provided crisis intervention and active listening
to all youth.

EDUCATION

University of Maine at Farmington; graduated 2006; Farmington, Maine
Bachelor of Arts: History

Franklin Pierce University; graduated 2018, Rindge, NH
Master of Business Administration



Wanda Knudsen

HIGHLIGHTS OF QUALIFICATIONS

* Dependable and dedicated worker

* Good human relations skills

* Good supervisory skills

* Ability to work independently or as a team member

* Commitment to quality work

* Strict attention to detail

Summary:

1/12 to Present - Alcohol and Drug Counselor

Kime Associates, Inc., Springfield, VT

Substance abuse counseling, screening clients, assessments, treatment plans, collaborating with
referring agencies. Supervised by a licensed alcohol, drug, and mental health counselor.

Supervisor: Ron Treem

4/11 to Present —Internship: CLEAR Coordinator

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Lebanon,.NH

Meeting with community service agencies and hospitals to talk about the CLEAR Program and
get referrals; making brochures advertising the CLEAR Program; meeting one-on-one with
CLEAR clients in one of my offices or in the client's home; record keeping; communication with
the Vermont Department of Health who funds the program; quarterly reports to the Vermont
Department of Health

10/10 to Present - NH Medical Case Manager

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Lebanon, NH

Collaboration with Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center to give quality care to current clients,

engaging new clients in care, and re-engaging clients who have fallen out of care; working with
clients who are H1V+: transporting them to medical appointments and to get medications;
assisting them in getting connected with social service agencies and state/federal agencies;
advocacy; phone support for clients in crisis; problem-solving with clients to help them figure
out how to get their needs met; record keeping; quarterly reporting to the NH CARE Program on



clients seen, issues, demographics; semi-annual reporting to the HOPWA Program on clients
served through HOPWA and clients served with monies not coming from HOPWA

9/08 to 12/11 - Certified Apprentice Substance Abuse Counselor
KIME Associates, Inc., Springfield, VT

Substance abuse counseling; screening clients; treatment plans; collaborating with referring
agencies. Supervised by a licensed alcohol, drug, and mental health counselor.

Supervisor: Ron Treem — (802) 885-1904 x 3

1991 to 2008 - Volunteer Guardian

Granite State Guardianship Services/Tri-County Community Action Program,
Whitefie]d,NH

Working with a woman who has developmental disabilities, cerebral palsy, and epilepsy.
Participate in annual and quarterly meetings, planning her goals, and checking on her progress.
Meet with her at least once a month to go out with her and check on her well-being. Immediately
report any concerns. Make monthly reports to the Tri-County Community Action Program.

Supervisor: Tri-County Community Action Program - (603) 837-9561

8/01 to 8/08 - Diversion and Alcohol Safety Program Case Manager

Valley Court Diversion Programs, White River Junction, VT

Screen clients in court and explain the Diversion process; schedule community Board hearings;
prepare paperwork for hearings by summarizing police reports and contacting crime victims and
police for their input into the cases; facilitate Board hearings; prepare contracts for clients;
oversee contract compliance; volunteer retention; volunteer trainings; record keeping of all
interactions involving clients; explain legal and organizational requirements for the Alcohol
Safety Program and assemble appropriate paperwork; screen people prior to coming to the class;
Certified apprentice-level substance abuse counselor.

Supervisor: Paul Haskell -(802) 763-8691

4/93 to 8/01 - Shelter Manager

Headrest, Lebanon, NH

Managed 8-bed shelter serving clients with substance abuse, mental health, dual-diagnosis, and
general and chronic homelessness issues; case management services; assisted clients in



identifying needs and how to address them; formed and monitored case plans; case histories
including short and long-term goals with clients; crisis counseling; drug testing; worked with
clients to successfully reintegrate them into the community; client advocacy; supervised five
part-time employees; collaborated with other programs within the agency; networked with other
social service agencies; record keeping; reported to various funding sources; statistics; assisted in
grant writing; on-call rotation with other clinical staff.

Supervisor; Donlon Wade - (603) 448-9994

8/00 to 8/01 - Interim Hotline Manager

Headrest, Lebanon, NH

Scheduled hotline shifts to provide 24-hour coverage; reviewed paperwork from phone calls and

debriefed difficult calls with hotline workers.

Supervisor: Donlon Wade — (603) 448-9994

12/91 to 4/93 - Crisis Counselor

Headrest, Lebanon, NH

Crisis counseling with hotline and walk-in clients - active listening/problem solving, drug,

alcohol and other addictions, suicide, domestic violence, child abuse, mental health issues, and

homelessness; information and referral; assisted in training hotline volunteers; worked in shelter

— crisis counseling and support for lodgers; began learning case management skills to assist

lodgers.

Supervisor: Gina Capossela - (802) 763-8691

4/89 to 10/91 - Gardener (Seasonal)

Vermont Everlastings, Thetford, VT

Greenhouse and field work: planting, weeding, and harvesting vegetables, herbs, and flowers.
Customer service.

Supervisor: Don Fifield -(802) 785-2604

4/88 to 1/89 - Garden Manager (Seasonal)

Moody Hill Farms, Amenia, NY (Now Out of Business)



Managed 17 acres of organic vegetables. Supervised part-time employees. Harvested and
shipped organic'produce. Responsible for quality control. Oversaw vehicle maintenance and
maintained shop inventory. Monitored compost piles.

Supervisor; Karl Hammer

4/86 to 4/88 - Gardener (Seasonal)

Longwind Farms, E. Thetford, VT

Greenhouse and field work: planting, weeding, and harvesting vegetables, herbs, and flowers.

Supervisor: David Chapman

7/01 to 8/08 — Environmental Volunteer (Seasonal)

White River Partnership, South Royalton, VT

Collect water samples once a week from June to August in the White River, so White River
Partnership can check for ecoli.

References available upon request.

EDUCATION

Springfield College

St. Johnsbury, VT

Graduate, Bachelor of Science in Human Services

Currently attending Springfield College working towards my Masters in Mental Health
Counseling.



Harm Reduction Coordinator

HIV/HCV Resource Center

This position is responsible for planning, coordinating and implementing the Harm Reduction programs
of the HIV/HCV Resource Center (H2RC) in Greater Sullivan County, including overdose prevention
training, education about viral transmission targeted to at-risk populations, and other community
outreach initiatives. The Harm Reduction Coordinator will collaborate with H2RC staff, volunteers and

community partners to support individuals at risk for HIV/AIDS, Hepatitis C and substance use disorder.

PRIMARY RESPONSIBILITIES

•  Develop and coordinate Syringe Service Programming in Greater Sullivan County; including
exploring possibilities for multiple sites.

•  Train staff and volunteers on program protocol.

•  Develop an annual harm reduction workplan with a timeline and goals derived from agency and
funder strategic and operational objectives.

•  Provide education and support for injection drug using populations with regards to health
promotion, community resources/referrals, etc.

•  Identify clients in need and provide appropriate referrals, including assisting clients with
accessing support services such as substance use treatment, homeless shelters, syringe
exchange. OD prevention and Naloxone, PrEP, treatment for HIV, HCV, and STIs, and other
services as needed.

•  Maintain working relationships with community partner agencies regarding service syringe
programming and overdose prevention.

Program Development

•  Coordinate the planning, development, implementation, and evaluation of educational and
outreach materials and workshops.

•  Identify emerging issues in HIV prevention and substance use by keeping up to date with
research, news releases, articles, etc.

•  Develop and deliver prevention education workshops to target populations and service agencies
about overdose prevention, HIV, HCV, harm reduction, H2RC's programs and services, safer
sexual practices and safer substance use.

•  Identify and coordinate prevention efforts with service providers working with populations at risk
for overdose.

•  Assist with developing and delivering volunteer training, focusing on harm reduction and
substance use issues.

•  Assist with HIV and HCV testing efforts.

•  Place volunteers in appropriate roles and activities.

• Work with service users to help them cope more effectively with issues and concerns related to
HIV, HCV, homelessness and/or substance use.

•  Connect with appropriate community resources on behalf of service users.

•  Develop and maintain referral and follow up procedures.



•  Link newly diagnosed Individuals to care services. Including case management and doctor
appointments, as well as helping with access to health insurance.

•  Represent H2RC at community meetings.

•  Recommend program improvements, and innovative strategies to reach focus populations as
well as non-English speaking populations as needed. Coordinate and implement all program
activities as per scope of work and timeline.

•  Maintain confidential records.

•  Prepare draft progress and final reports for programs and activities.

I

Qualifications:

•  Successful experience working with ethnic, racial, economic and sexually diverse populations
•  Must be able to work independently as well as in a team environment

•  An understanding of harm reduction principles as they relate to reducing injecting-related harm
and bloodborne pathogen prevention

•  An understanding of bloodborne pathogen transmission and treatment

•  An understanding of the social determinants of health that affect lives of people who inject drugs

•  Strong problem solving, written and verbal communication skills



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

TBA Harm Reduction Coordinator 46,000 100% 46,000

Laura Byrne SSP manager/ Executive
Director

65,906 10% 6,591

Ryan Richards SSP Manager/ SSP Case
Manager/VT Case Manager

52,000 20% 10,400

Wanda Knudsen LADC/ NH Case manager 48,600 5% 2,430



Jeffrey A. Meyers
CommissiODer

Usi M. Morris
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

D/y/S/ON or PUBLIC heal th ser vices

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 1-800-852-3345 Ext 4501

Fax:603-271-4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 31,2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health Services, to
enter into an agreement with HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. {Vendor # 166709-B001), 2 Blacksmith
Street. Lebanon, New Hampshire 03766. to provide community-based harm reduction sen/Ices and
supports to Individuals who are in crisis related to their opioid use or post opiold overdose and co-
occurring medical diseases, in an amount not to exceed $50,109, effective upon Governor and Executive
Council approval, through Novemt>er 30, 2019. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available In the following account for State Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipated to l>e
available in SFY 2020, upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.

05-95-090-902510-70390000-102-500731 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH

AND HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, DISEASE CONTROL, PUBLIC HEALTH
CRISIS RESPONSE

State Fiscal Year Class/Account Class Title
Activity/Job
Number

Total Amount

2019 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703901 $26,144

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90703901 $23,965

Total $50,109



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to have the Contractor provide community-based harm reduction
services and supports to Individuals who are in crisis related to their opioid use or post opioid overdose
and co-occurring medical diseases in the areas of Claremont, neighboring towns In Sullivan County,
including, but not limited to Newport, Cornish. Croydon and Charlestown.

Approximately 40 to 50 Individuals will be served from date of the Governor and Executive Council
approval through November 30. 2019.

The State of New Hampshire is in the midst of an opioid overdose epidemic. In 2018, New
Hampshire had 397 opioid-related deaths, and 6,684 emergency department opioid related visits, of
which 2.774 were emergency naloxone (Narcan) administrations. New Hampshire is ranked as having
the third highest overdose rate, in the country, at 39 individuals per 100,000 population. Providing harm
reduction services to people with substance use disorder supports a statewide effort to decrease negative
health outcomes, including the spread of infectious disease, related to substance misuse.

The Contractor will utilize education in their program to assist individuals in gaining knowledge
and making informed decisions about their own health. Services will include, but are not limited to.
referrals to medical, mental health and substance misuse treatment social services, offering
transportation to follow-up appointments to ensure linkage to care, assisting individuals on applying for
health insurance and getting into treatment, providing support during the Individual's transition to medical
care and ensuring that expanded sen/ices are offered.

The Contractor will provide expanded services which include, but are not limited to, written and
verbal education about safe drug injection practices, reversing a drug overdose; HIV prevention, viral
hepatitis, and sexually transmitted diseases testing, treatment and care services; medical and mental
health treatment options, substance use disorder treatment including medical and assisted treatment and
proper use of male and female condoms.

The Contractor will provide referral activities to enhance the integration of community-based
services to reduce infectious disease transmission and reduce injected drug use. Including sen/ices for
the prevention of mother-to-child Infectious disease transmission, Hepatitis A and B vaccine, ensuring
the mother is receiving prenatal medical care, working with pregnant clients who are not in medical care
to help dismantle barriers to receiving care.

The following performance measures/objectives will be used to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

•  Ninety-five percent (95%) of newly identified HIV positive Individuals will be inked to
medical care within thirty (30) days of receiving a positive test result;

•  Ninety-five (95%) of newly identified HCV antibody positive individuals who do not receive
a Ribonucleic Acid (RNA) test at the time of antibody-screening, shall have a documented
referral to medical care, at that time;

•  Ninety-five percent (95%) of individuals utilizing Harm Reduction Services shall utilize one
(1) or more.Harm Reduction Services per visit;

•  The contractor shall offer referrals to social service. HIV, HCV and STD testing,
medical/mental health and medication-assisted treatment referrals for fifty percent (50%)
of their individuals and confirm linkage.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 3 of 3

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. was selected for this project through a competitive bid process.
A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Hijman Services' website from
October 24, 2018 through November 16, 2018. The Department received two (2) proposals. The
proposals were reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program-specific knowledge. The
Summary Score Sheet is attached. (

As referenced in the Exhibit C-1, of this contract, the Department has the option to extend contract
services for up to one (1) additional year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available
funding, agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request; Individuals at highest risk
for acquiring an infectious disease due to injection drug use, may not have the opportunity to access the
knowledge necessary to make informed decisions about their own health. Individuals will hot have the
chance to be linked to the aforementioned essential services described above.

Area served; Claremont, neighboring towns in Sullivan County, including, but not limited to
Newport, Cornish, Croydon and Charlestown.

Source of Funds; 100% Federal Funds from Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, Public

Health Emergency Response: Cooperative Agreement for Emergency Response: Public Health Crisis
Response Funding Opportunity Number: CDC-RFA-TP18-1802. Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance Number (CFDA) 93.354.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

mrey A. Meyers

Commissioner

The Deportment of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit.

Summary Scoring Sheet

COMMUNITY BASED HARM

REDUCTION SERVICES

RFP Name

RFP.2019-DPHS-20-COMMU

RFP Number Reviewer Names
TinSsa^ierceTSureaTChi^

-] Infectious Disease Prevntn,
Investgtn & Care Servs

Bidder Name

^ HIV/HCV Resource Center

Pass/Fail

Maximum

Points

Actual

Points

Ellen.Chase-Lucard

Administrator

490 422

Rachel Kusch Infectious Disease

Care Coordinator

^ Southern NH AIDS/HIV Task Force 490 353

Karen Hammond

Administrator III

- Melissa Richards

Program Specialist IV



Subject: Community Based Harm Reduction Services. RFP-2019-DPHS-20-COMMU:^
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version S/8/1S)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTinCATION.

I.I State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

2 Blacksmith Street

Lebanon NH 03766

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-448-8887

1.6 Account Number

05-095-090-902510-7093-102-

500731

1.7 Completion Date

November 30, 2019

1.8 Price Limitation

$50,109

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director
Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1. 11 Ctmp^ctor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1. 13 AcknowledgemCTK State of /i// , County of

On 5/ ̂ ^ • before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1. 11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated In block 1.12.

1.13.1 Signature ofNotary Publitrer Justice of the Peace PATRICIA L. JORDAN
★ NOTARY PUBUC • NEW HAMPSHIRE *
My CommtsstonExptr— Jwary I3;20g1_

cffhuttee eftho-Pcn

fSeal] V
1.13.2 Name and Title of No^Sy

1.14 State i^ency Signature '

Date: I * ̂

1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Libfi /Ott'RRiS ,
1.16 Approval by the N.H, Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (i/ applicable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney Genera! (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

t;

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 ('*State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contraoor*') to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
^Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effeaive on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
die Agreement shall become effective on the date Ac
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporate herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Ccntraaor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor, b addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants fcH*
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or naticmal origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any pan by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemoited by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Pan 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with alt rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement

7. PERSONNEU

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement administration or performance of this

2 of 4
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Agreement This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement
7.3 The Contraaing Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
("Event of Defeulf):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.Z 1 &ve the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greata or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and ifthe Event of Default Is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the extractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.Z4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memorant^ documents,
alt whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any prc^>erty which has been received from
the State or purcha^ with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be relumed to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 - A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ('Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Taminaticn
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its emplc^ees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfa any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

U. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothingherein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or |X-operty damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers tic^sed in the State of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Coitrecting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or ha successor, a certificate(s)
of Insurance for all insurance required unda this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Offica
identified in block 1.9, or his or ha successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required unda ̂is
Agreement no lata than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The ceftificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thaeof shall be attached and are
incorporated haein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified m block 1.9, or his
or ha successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements ofN.H. RSA chapta 281-A
(" Workers' Compensation ").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofN.H. RSA chapta 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the pa son proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement Contractor shall
furnish the Contraaing Offica identified in block 1.9, or his
or ha successor, proof of Workers* Compensation in the
manna described in N.R RSA chapter 28 NA and any
applicable renewal(s) thaeof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workas* Compensation
premiums or for any otha claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise unda applicable State of New Hampshire Workas*
Compensation laws in conneaion with the paformance of the
Services unda this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof afta any Event of Defeult shall
be deemed a waiva of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of De^ult. No express
feilure to enforce any Event of De^ult shall be deemed a
waiver of the ri^t of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions haeof upon any flirtha or other Event of De&ult
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party haao to the otha party
shall be deemed to have been duly deiivaed or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, haein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties herao and only afta approval of such
amendment, waiva or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State ofNew Hampshire unless no

such approval is required unda the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Slate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual)
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intoid to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for refaence purposes only, and the words contained
thaein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions sd
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated haein by
refaence.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of compaent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or fedaal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force ar>d
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a numba ofcounterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
undastanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and undastanding relating hado.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Limitation on Use of Funds

1.1. This section identifies all items that cannot be funded through this contract.

1.1.1. The Contractor shall not use the federal funding provided by this
program for the research or purchase of items that include, but are not
limited to:

1.1.1.1. Research, publicity, lobbying and/or propaganda;

1.1.1.2. Sterile needles;

1.1.1.3. Syringes, cookers, tourniquets and/or any other drug
preparation equipment for the purposes of hypodermic
injection of any illegal drug;

1.1.1.4. Sharps containers;

1.1.1.5. Treatment medication;

1.1.1.6. Naloxone;

1.1.1.7. Clinical care;

1.1.1.8. Diagnostic testing, including rapid test kits, strips or specimen
testing for disease, including:

1.1.1.8.1. Fentanyl test strips;

1.1.1.8.2. Human Immunodeficiency (HIV);

1.1.1.8.3. Hepatitis B Virus (HBV);

1.1.1.8.4. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV); and

1.1.1.8.5. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs).

1.1.1.9. Drug disposal, including:

1.1.1.9.1. Disposal programs;

1.1.1.9.2. Drop boxes;

1.1.1.9.3. Bags or other devises; and
/  ̂

1.1.1.9.4. Take-back events.

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc. ExWbit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

2. Provisions Applicable to All Services

2.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance
services they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure
meaningful access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of
the contract effective date.

2.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as
to achieve compliance therewith.

2.3. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2019, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2019, unless and
until an appropriation for these services has been received from the state
legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2020-2021 biennia.

2.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, the Department has identified the
Contractor as a Sub-recipient in accordance with 2 CFR 200.0. et seq.

2.5. The Contractor shall post its address, phone numbers, program contact
information and, if appropriate, hours of operation and services offered on its
Internet website.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure services are available to individuals in their

service areas of Claremont, New Hampshire and neighboring New Hampshire
Sullivan County towns, including but not limited to Newport, Cornish, Croydon
and Chariestown.

3. Scope of Services

3.1. The Contractor shall both implement and provide for the ongoing management
of harm reduction services in their identified service areas listed in sub-section

2.6.

3.2. The Contractor shall implement and provide ongoing management of a Harm
Reduction Program by:

3.2.1. Ensuring the program is adequately staffed and staff are well trained on

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc Exhibit A Contractor Initiats,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

topics which shall Include, but are not limited to:

3.2.1.1. Overdose prevention;

3.2.1.2. Universal precautions;

3.2.1.3. Mandated reporting; and

3.2.1.4. Other harm reduction topics.

3.3. The Contractor shall provide a variety of harm reduction services that include,
but are not limited to:

3.3.1. Distribution of male and female condoms to reduce the risk of sexual
transmission of viral hepatitis, HIV or other STDs;

3.3.2. Distribution of naloxone, not purchased with funds from this contract, to
reverse opioid overdoses;

3.3.3. Harm Reduction Education; and

3.3.4. Referrals to medical, mental health and substance misuse treatment
social services.

3.4. The Contractor shall collaborate with community partners to navigate
resources that address social determinants of health with individuals with
various needs.

3.5. The Contractor shall utilize education in their harm reduction program, to
assist individuals in gaining knowledge and making informed decisions about
their own health. This shall include written and verbal education about the
following topics:

3.5.1. Safe drug injection practices;

3.5.2. Reversing a drug overdose;

3.5.3. HIV prevention, testing, treatment and care services;

3.5.4. Viral Hepatitis testing, treatment and care services:

3.5.5. STD testing, treatment and care services;

3.5.6. Medical and mental health treatment options;

3.5.7. Substance use disorder treatment including medical and assisted
treatment; and

3.5.8. The proper use of male and female condoms.

3.6. The Contractor shall provide navigation services for individuals including, but

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc Exhibit A Contractor Initials,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

not limited to:

3.6.1. Medical care for tiepatitis C virus (HCV) and HIV;

3.6.2. STD and TB testing, treatment and care;

3.6.3. HIV Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP) and HIV Post-Exposure
Prophylaxis (PEP);

3.6.4. Prevention of mother to child transmission;

3.6.5. Partner services;

3.6.6. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Treatment;

3.6.7. Medical and mental health care; and

3.6.8. Referral to Hepatitis A and 8 vaccines.

3.7. The Contractor shall educate people living with HIV on HIV Partner Services
that are free and confidential and can assist them with navigating the process
of informing current and past partners about their HIV status. The Contractor
shall ensure:

3.7.1. Individuals have the option to choose to ask a specialist to speak directly
with their partners;

3.7.2. Confidentiality of individuals' identifying information and ensuring
identifying information is not shared with individuals' identified partners.

3.7.3. Information about services, includes but is not limited to:

3.7.3.1. Working with individuals, especially those who are newly
diagnosed, encouraging them to utilize Partner Services;

3.7.3.2. Encouraging individuals to persuade their peers to visit the
program in person; and

3.7.3.3. Encouraging individuals to utilize other relevant community
resources.

3.8. The Contractor shall have well-established referral networks and offer a

seamless linkage to care for individuals who test positive for HIV.

3.9. The Contractor shall help individuals access the NH treatment locator and
other NH specific resources that can guide individuals to recovery and
treatment for mental health and substance misuse. The Contractor shall:

3.9.1. Place calls on behalf of individuals to schedule appointments, if
requested, and facilitate their entry into assessment, treatment, or
recovery opportunities.

3.9.2. Discuss and provide printed copies of the Good Samaritan laws in both

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

VT and NH that protect individuals from being arrested for drug
possession when they call 911 in the event of an overdose.

3.9.3. Strongly encourage all individuals to call for help on their own.

3.10. The Contractor shall conduct outreach services, including through social
media, which may include but are not limited to:

3.10.1. Transmitting information through social networks targeting individuals
who may be in need of services;

3.10.2. Creating information cards for individuals to use as a method of
providing discreet messaging with people they can trust. The Contractor
shall ensure the information card includes, but is not limited to:

3.10.2.1. Program description;

3.10.2.2. Hours of operation;

3.10.2.3. Location of services; and

3.10.2.4. Program contact information.

3.10.3. Advertising program services on bulletin boards located throughout the
town;

3.10.4. Providing content regarding program services the Contractor's
Facebook page and its website that includes locations of sen/ices and
hours of operation;

3.10.5. Utilizing paid targeted advertisements on social media platforms that
include but are not limited to Facebook to educate community partners
program services;

3.11. The Contractor shall coordinate with community-based services in order to
reduce infectious disease transmission and addiction to injected drugs.

3.11.1. Works with harm reduction clients directly to identify their needs and
assist them with accessing medical and social services which shall
include, but not be limited to:

3.11.2. Substance misuse treatment;

3.11.3. STD (sexually transmitted disease) testing;

3.11.4. Hepatitis C follow up;

3.11.5. Mental health counseling; and

3.11.6. Housing.

3.12. The Contractor shall ensure program services include a Harm Reduction

HIV/HCV Resource Cerrter, Inc. Exhibit A Contracta Initials.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

Coordinator who: ^

3.12.1. Accompanies individuals to follow up appointments, if desired, in order
to ensure linkage to care;

3.12.2. Works closely with individuals to assist them with applying for health
insurance and getting into treatment;

3.12.3. Maintains current records of all trainings for staff regarding program
services;

3.12.4. Works vwth communities within the Contractor's service areas to

promote harm reduction strategies, and overdose prevention and to help
ensure successful referrals to linkage to substance misuse, mental
health and medical care; and

3.12.5. Trains and supervises volunteer staff in areas that include, but are not
limited to:

3.12.5.1. Overdose prevention;

3.12.5.2. Infection control procedures;

3.12.5.3. Standard universal precautions;

3.12.5.4. IB screening;

3.12.5.5. Sexual health; and

3.12.5.6. Opiate addiction overview, including relapse and relapse
prevention.

3.13. The Contractor shall ensure policies and procedures are implemented and
followed on a day-to-day basis for individual follow-up for HIV/HCV Testing,
including, but not limited to:

3.13.1. Collaborating with Partner Services when results of a test are positive;

3.13.2. Encouraging individuals who test positive for HIV to make use of
confidential Partner Services; and

3.13.3. Connecting individuals directly with a specialist from the Division of
Public Health Services in order to help locate their sex and drug sharing
partners for follow up.

3.14. The Contractor shall ensure the Program Coordinator reyiev;rs results of HIV
and HCV screening tests to ensure linkage to follow up testing and care.

3.15. The Contractor shall enroll any newly diagnosed individual with HIV, who are

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Ina Exhibit A Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

eligible, for HIV case management services.

3.16. The Contractor shall:

3.16.1. Provide support during the individual's transition to medical care;

3.16.2. Assist individuals with problems that may arise, which may include, but
are not limited to:

3.16.2.1. Maintaining communication with the individual;

3.16.2.2. Offering transportation to medical appointments; and

3.16.2.3. Assisting individuals with navigation through the insurance
system.

3.17. The Contractor shall ensure that Expanded Services are offered, wrhich
include, but are not limited to:

3.17.1. Education and counseling aimed to reduce sexual, injection and/or
overdose risks;

3.17.2. Providing condoms in an effort to reduce the risk of sexual transmission
of viral hepatitis. HIV and/or other STDs;

3.17.3. Participating in referral activities, within their area of service to enhance
the integration of community-based services to reduce infectious
disease transmission and reduce injected drug use, which shall include,
but not be limited to:

3.17.3.1. Referral and linkage to treatment and care services for the
prevention of mother-to-child infectious disease transmission
which shall include, but not be limited to:

3.17.3.1.1. Referral on site to a location that can provide
Hepatitis A and B vaccines:

3.17.3.1.2. Ensure the mother is receiving prenatal medical
care;

3.17.3.1.3. Work with pregnant clients who are not in
medical care to help dismantle barriers to
receiving care, whether these are insurance,
transportation, fear, or any other barrier;

3.17.3.1.4. Offer HIV antibody testing, not purchased
through this contract, to pregnant clients who are
not receiving prenatal care; and

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

3.17.3.1.5. Assist client with obtaining Immediate medical
care should the test result be positive for HIV.

3.17.3.2. Referral and linkage to treatment and care services for partner
services;

3.17.3.3. Referral, linkage to. and the provision of, substance use
disorder treatment, including, but not limited to;

3.17.3.4. Obtaining medication; and

3.17.3.5. Assisted treatment for substance use disorders, which

combine drug therapy with counseling and behavioral
therapy.

3.17.3.5.1. Referrals to medical care;

3.17.3.5.2. Referrals to mental health services; and

3.17.3.5.3. Referrals to other support services.

3.18. The Contractor shall immediately refer pregnant women to medication-
assisted treatment programs and other support programs, as appropriate.

3.19. The Contractor shall offer a variety of in-house services which include, but are
not limited to:

3.19.1. Utilizing a case manager, who is a Certified Application Counselor, to
assist individuals with applying for health insurance; and

3.19.2. Utilizing a case manager, who is a Licensed Alcohol and Drug
Counselor, to offer counseling to selected individuals.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall comply with State of New Hampshire infectious disease
reporting in accordance with Administrative Rules He-P 301.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports that include, but are not limited
to:

4.2.1. A brief summary of activities to date;

4.2.2. Number of participants in the program, which shall include, but not be
limited to:

4.2.2.1. Number of repeat users of the program, when possible;

4.2.2.2. Number of individuals to whom education has been provided,

HIV/HCV Resource Center, tnc Exhibit A Contractor Initials LtS
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

for services which shall include, but not be limited to:

4.2.2.2.1. Safe drug Injection practices;

4.2.2.2.2. Reversing a drug overdose;

4.2.2.2.3. HIV prevention, testing, treatment and care
services;

4.2.2.2.4. Viral Hepatitis testing, treatment and care
services;

4.2.2.2.5. STD testing, treatment and care services:

4.2.2.2.6. Medical and mental health treatment options;

4.2.2.2.7. Substance use disorder treatment, including
medical and assisted treatment; and

4.2.2.2.8. The proper use of male and female condoms.

4.2.2.3. Number of condoms dispensed;

4.2.2.4. Number of referrals to substance misuse treatment, including,
but not limited to:

4.2.2.4.1. Medication; and,

4.2.2.4.2. Assisted treatment for substance use disorders,

which combine drug therapy with counseling and
behavioral therapy.

'4.2.2.5. Number of HIV tests provided, and results; and
4.2.2.6. Number of HCV tests provided, and results.

4.3. The Contractor shall demonstrate, through adequate maintenance of records,
and provide to the Department on request, a report detailing that the items
identified in Section 1 have not been purchased with these federal funds.

5. Performance Measures

5.1. The Contractor's successful performance shall be measured using SMART
milestones, which include;

5.1.1. Ninety-five percent (95%) of newly identified HIV positive individuals will
be linked to medical care within thirty (30) days of receiving a positive

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Ina Exhibit A '7) Contractor lnttiaisAr'5"
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services

Exhibit A

test result;

5.1.2. Ninety-five percent (95%) of newly identified HCV antibody positive
individuals who do not receive a Ribonucleic acid (RNA) test at the time
of antibody-screening, shall have a documented referral to medical care,
at that time;

5.1.3. Ninety-five percent (95%) of individuals utilizing Harm Reduction
Services shall utilize one (1) or more Harm Reduction Services per visit;
and

5.1.4. The Contractor shall offer referrals to social service, HIV, HCV and STD
testing, medical/mental health and medication-assisted treatment
referrals for fifty percent (50%) of their individuals and confirm linkage.

6. Deliverables

6.1. The Contractor shall create an evaluation plan that consists of all measures to
be tracked and revisit this plan on a quarterly basis making improvements as
necessary and staying regularly engaged with evaluation.

6.2. The Contractor shall provide a work plan to the Department, with timeline for
the project, within thirty (30) days of the contract effective date.

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community Based Harm Reduction Services
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A. Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with federal funds as follows: 100% Federal Funds from
Centers for Disease Control, Office of Publich Health Preparedness and Response,
Public Health Emergency Response, Cooperative Agreement for Emergency
Response: Public Health Crisis Response. Funding Opportunity Number, CDC-RFA-
TP18-1802. CFDA #93.354, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN)
U90TP921963.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements.

4. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's curent
and/or future funding.

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreenrtent, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits 8-1 Budget and Exhibit 8-2
Budget.

5.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth (20th) working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

5.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available.

6. The Contractor understands that the use of federal funding from this contract cannot
be used for research or purchase of items that include:

6.1. Research, publicity, lobbying and/or propaganda;
6.2. Sterile needles;

HIV/HCV Resource Center. Inc. EitfiibitB Comractof initlab
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6.3. Syringes, cookers, tourniquets and/or any other drug preparation equipment
for the purposes of hypodermic injection of any illegal drug;

6.4. Sharps containers;
6.5. Treatment medication;
6.6. Naloxone;

6.7. Clinical care;

6.8. Diagnostic testing, including rapid test kits, strips, or specimen testing for
disease, including:

6.8.1. Fentanyl test strips;
6.8.2. Human Immunodeficiency (HIV);
6.8.3. Hepatitis B Virus (HBV);
6.8.4. Hepatitis C Virus (HCV); and
6.8.5. Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STDs).

6.9. Drug disposal, including:
6.9.1. Disposal programs;
6.9.2. Drop boxes;
6.9.3. Bags or other devices; and
6.9.4. Take back events.

7. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

8. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

9. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to DPHSContractBllling@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator, Karen Hammond

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord. NH 03301

10. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc EitfiibMB Contractor initials
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11. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or In part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

12. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting anx)unts between budget line items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

HIV/HCV Resource Center, Inc EitfiibitB Contractor iniiiab
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SPeCIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made In accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
^ individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall t>e informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sut>-agreernent if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such senrice. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; ; ̂
Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such rep>ayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permrtt^ to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS. MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect alt such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, txxjks, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

6.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient erf services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States. Local Governments, and Non
Profrt Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Fundions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Centred and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuantto
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contrad, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contrador shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contrad to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or colleded
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contrad shall be confidential and shallnot
be disclosed by the Contrador, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
diredly conneded to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
diredly conneded with the administration of the Department or the Contradoris responsibilities with
resped to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attomey or guardian.

Exhibit C - Special Provbior^s Contractor IrMtiab ^
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at thefollowing
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descriptionof

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum numt>er of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review ofthe .
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include thefollowing
statement;

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: in the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all l^s, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any govemmental license or
permit shall be requir^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the Slate Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certiftcatlon Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at; http://www.ojp.usdpj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, nationalorigin
dischmination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 628 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform Its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblov/er rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). In all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Sut>contractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibH'ity and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor initials.
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions:

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance wKh cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or rpvised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existii>g federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - special Provisions ' Contractor Initials _

osnsns Page 5 of 5 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. fiftnttnn 4 Conditional Nature of Aoreemenl. Is replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions. Account Number, or any other
account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may tenninale the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State. 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 in the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to. identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan mcludir>g. but r>ot limited to, any Information or data
requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and
shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of ratifying clients and other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Renewal

2.1. The Department reserves the right to extend tNs agreement for up to one (1) additional year.
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties artd approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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CUrDHHSAB04lB Page 1 of 1 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUQ-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE i - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and puWished as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that thay will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.530(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below Is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shaD be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employes that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a ccntrolled substance Is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be Imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each emptoyee to be ertgaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Empbyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant acti\^ the convicted emptoyee was working, unless the Federal agency

ZA
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent vrith the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2.1.3,1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connectiori with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name;

rADate Nam<

Exhibit D-Certification regarding Drug Frw Contractor Initiab
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319of Pubiic Law 101-121. Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A

•Child Sup^ Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicald Program under Tide XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Tide Vt
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress In
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shail complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobt)ying. in accordance with Its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at ail tiers (including subcortiracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
bans, and cooperative agreements) arxl that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made ex entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person \Arho fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such toilure.

Contractor Name:

,
Date Name^ ^

Exhibit E - Cartificstbn Rbgardtng Lbbbying Contractor Initiate

cuDMHSinoris Page 1 of 1 Data ^ 1



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTtFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY fyiATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regardir>g Debarmerrt,
Suspension, and Other Responstoilily Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below win not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. Hovi«ver. failure of the prospective prirnary
participant to fumish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary paitlcipant knowingty rendered an erroneous certification. In addition to other remedies
avaitable to the Federal Govemment, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant leams
that Its certification was emoneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction." 'deban-ed.' 'suspended.' 'ineligible,' "lower tier covered
transaction." 'participant.' 'person.' 'primary covered transaction." 'principal,' 'proposal.' and
"voluntarily excluded.' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitiona.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, It shall not knowingly enter Into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that It is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it kr»ow8 that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. Each
participant may, but Is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

g. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

/ &
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which Is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

to Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who Is
suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transacUon. in
addition to other rem^ies available to the F^eral government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ^
11. The prospective primary participant certtftes to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that It and its

principals: .
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvll judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense In
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; vidat'ion of Federal or Stats antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property,

11.3. are rwt presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civllly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal. Stale or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1Kb)
of this certification; ar>d

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this appDcatlon/proposa! had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shaP attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this kjwer tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier parliapant as

defined in 45 CFR Part 75, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that It and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared inefiglble, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
include tWs clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, Ineligibtlity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lovrer Tier Covered Transactions." virithout modification in all lower tier covered
trarwactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

Date Narrffe:

Exhibit F - C«rtiflcitio(i Regardirtfl OekMrTTwnt. Su»perBlon Contractor (niUab,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CgRTIFICATIQN OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
PPnFRAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH'BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WNISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, end will require any subgrantees or sul)contractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrtmlnation requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either In employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the dvil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131 -34). which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not indudo
employment discrimination;

• 28 C.F.R. pL 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employrrrenl Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships vrith faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C F R. pL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2.2013) the Riot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhistleWowef Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reKance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payrrrents. suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment

exhiWt G / fX
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In the ovenl a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makra a finding of
rtfcrrimination after 3 due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, nabonal
aaainst a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office 'o*" Rights, toS^t^^ iigerrcy or division within the Departnjent of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature o' ®
representative as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
ce^ificetion:

I. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

Date

<1^1 (1
Name: -g

Exhibit G . ̂  ̂
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certification RgGARDiNG ENVIRONMENT^I TOBACCO SMOKE

PuWIc Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also krwwn as the Pro-Children Art of 1994
(Art) requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor fMility own^ .t'atinn
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the
or Bbrary services to children under the age of 18. if the services are fund^ by Fed^
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract
law does not apply to children's services provided in pnvate
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for Inpabent drug or alwhol treatme^ Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a avil monetary pena^ rt up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the follovnng
certification:

1  By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
withal applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C. known as the ProChiWren Art of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Qate Na>fie:5hlL
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JH INSiJRANCF PORTABILITY ACT
ARREFMENT

The ContracJor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of ^greeinert agre^ to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Public Law 104-19^^
with^ Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Irtormation, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined ̂ rein,
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contracts that
receive use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services.

{1) DefinHlons.

a. -Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Trtle 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Rusiness Associate' has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. ■nflsionated Record Set' shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Sectioni 64.501.

e. "Pata AQoreaation" shall have the same meaning as the term 'data aggregation" in 45CFR
Section 164.501.

f_ "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health careoperations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

0  "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXin. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Indtvidually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

1  "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individuar in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

i  -Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heat^
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k  "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protect^ hraith
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

Exhibit 1 Contractor
Health Insurance Portabaity Act
Business Associate Agieement /'\ z / ,4Pa90iot6 Date_S.(^/(7
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■Rnq^jired bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45CFR
Section 164.103.

m.

0.

"Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Servicesor
his/her designee.

"Reriiritv Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, SubpartC. and amendments thereto.
"lincftcured Protected Health Infofmatlon" means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,'  . . . . . . . •• ! -I .:.J. .^1^ AnHnPCi

p-

unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endors^ by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

other Definitions - All terms not othentfise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

a.

(2) Rn^lngfifi Assnciatfl Use apH nijtclosur^ nf Protected HeaKh Information.
Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the sen/Ices outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b  Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I  For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth In par^raph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c.

3«014

To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which It was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such tfiird party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notific^ion
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI. to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure Is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that It is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure. theSusmess

Exhibit I Contractor InitlalE
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qhlioations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health infonnation and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall Immediately perfonn a risk assessment when Itbecomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the llkelihood of re-identlficalion;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health infoimalion or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health infonnation was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment writhin 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, arxl
Breach Notification Rule.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for ^
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be consider^ a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

ExWBlt I Contractor Initials
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disciosure of
protected health information.

f  Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices ajl
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business'Assodate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h  Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to futfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

1  Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall makeavailable
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall wthin two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, If forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the BusinessAssoclate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeaslble, for so long as Business

3/2014 Eihlbit I Contractor InMiata j
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole disCTetion. requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) nhliaationa of nnvftrwf Entity

a  Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limltation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR S^on
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Assodale's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b  Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c  Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) T'^rmlnatlnn for Causa

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breacii by Business Associate of the Business Associate

,  Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a  Definittons and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section In the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as Is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicat)l8 federal and state law.

c  Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

ri Interoretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3«)H Exhibit I Contfoclor Inllials
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P  Seareaation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the appllcaUon thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms arxl conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

f  Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destnjction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department Health and Human Services

Signature ̂ ALhod^ Representative
kiSA

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Date ' '

Nan^e of the Contractor

Signature of -aulhoitSignature of i6(uthorized Representative

Name of Authorized Representative

Title of Authorized Representative

Diti"" '

3C014 Exhibit I
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rCRTIFICATION BFRARniNG THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTftBILITY AN" TR*NSP/>REN(;t
—  ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

Th« Federal Funding AccountabiBty and Transparency Act (FFATA)
Federal arants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1.2010. to re[»rt on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25.00^ more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a lota! avwrt equalto or over
$25 000 the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of^e date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensatton Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the foyowing information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of perfonnance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS#)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If. ^

10.1 More than 60% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of tire mortti, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made. . ^ ,
The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with me prov^ore o^
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency AcL Public Law 109-262 and Public Lw 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification: ^ a. uu
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name:

/(a/-'((^1 J
Oate ' ' NSme: 0/Cd XZ-fC

Title: -v-/ ^

ClVDHHSriCTia

Exhfc# J - Certification ftogarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inltiats.
Aooounlsbity And Tranaparency Ad (FFATA) CompUanca ^\ /^\
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions. I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. Th- r..,mKor fnr yOlir Pntitv Is: 8^?^ 32-^ ̂  ̂ ̂
2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization

receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
bans grants sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements: and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross'revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, bans, grants, subgrants. and/orcooperative agreements? ^

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the fbitowing:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
bu^ness or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or sectbn 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

VNO YES

If the answer to #3 above Is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following;

4. The names and compensatbn of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Mama I /jU/a 7/^^

:: r\\^Name

Name;

Name;

Name;

Amount; ^ (^■2 ^
Amount

Amount;

Amount:

Amount;

CUOHHSn 10719

Exhkl J - C«niAcation Rvgarding th« FadorsI Funding
AocountaWtty And Tr«rt«p»r®ncyAd (FFATA) Comptance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected arxt have the described meanirig In this document;

1. "Breach" means" the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incidenr In section two (2) of NISI Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as aD medical, health, financial, public
assistance tjenefrts and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Stale of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition Is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential Information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
busir^ess associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Inddenf means an act that potentially violates an explicit or Implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or Its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents Include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and mlsrouting of physical or electronic

V6.Le5tupd3laia«)9/10 Exhibit K Coniraclor Initial
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Networic" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI. PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

0. 'Personal Information" (or "PH means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an indivlduars Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
Stales Department of Health and Human Senrices.

/

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Prot^ted Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information' means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILmES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

vs. Last update 10/09/18 E)tf«)it K Contractor Inillals
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request for disciosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to ttie disclosure.

3. If DHHS notries the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be boutxl by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any oUier purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecling to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

II. NCTHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Errcryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data If
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If Errd User is employing the Web to transrhit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mall Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

vs. Laal update 1(V0»18 Extib* K Cortraclorlniilals,
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which Information will t>e
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure RIe Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data. End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-foWers used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, ail
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of infonmation.

111. RETENTION AND DISPOSmON OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered urxJer this Contract outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, doud service or doud storage capabilities, and indudes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
arxl/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure locatbn and identified in sedion IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/MITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All senrers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor viriH maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer In use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted starxlards for secure deletion and media
sanilization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-8B, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanltization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the Information llfecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

V5. Lasi update Itt09/18 ExhibiK Contraclorlnitials,
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Departntent confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. tf the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements vrill be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. if the Department determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the sun/ey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

DHHS InfcrmaUor
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the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with wet>site and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, Including,
but not limited to. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually Identifiable health
Information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to It. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Infomnation Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/dortArendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. atx>ve.
implemented to protect Confidential information that is famished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all tinries.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected. *

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrvoted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

vs. Last update 1 (V09/18 Bduliit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

SecurityRequirerrwnts ^ ^ ̂
Page 7 of 9 Date.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K.

DHHS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, caid keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data nfujst be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances Involved.

1. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared iwith anyone. ,End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
resen/es the right to conduct onsite inspections- to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's- Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches Immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to. and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with ail applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine If personally Identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine, risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach rtotrfication is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed artd reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurTtyOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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